HALIFAX REGIONAL COUNCIL MINUTES August 9, 2005

PRESENT: Mayor Peter Kelly

Deputy Mayor Goucher

Councillors: Steve Streatch

Krista Snow
David Hendsbee
Harry McInroy
Andrew Younger
Bill Karsten
Becky Kent

Jim Smith
Patrick Murphy
Dawn Sloane
Sue Uteck
Russell Walker

Debbie Hum Linda Mosher Brad Johns Robert Harvey Reg Rankin Gary Meade

REGRETS: Councillors: Gloria McCluskey

Mary Wile

Sheila Fougere Stephen Adams

STAFF: Mr. Dan English, Acting Chief Administrative Officer

Mr. Wayne Anstey, Municipal Solicitor

Ms. Jan Gibson, Municipal Clerk

Ms. Julia Horncastle, Legislative Assistant

TABLE OF CONTENTS

IVOCATION	DCATION 04				
PPROVAL OF MIN	ROVAL OF MINUTES 0				
PROVAL OF THE ORDER OF BUSINESS AND APPROVAL OF DITIONS AND DELETIONS					
USINESS ARISINO	INESS ARISING OUT OF THE MINUTES				
MOTIONS OF RECONSIDERATION - NONE					
MOTIONS OF RESCISSION - NONE					
CONSIDERATION OF DEFERRED BUSINESS - NONE					
 Sale of 101 A Women and Case 00749 Planning Strategy and 	LIC HEARINGS Sale of 101 Albro Lake Road (Lot 3A) Dartmouth, to Adsum for Women and Children				
1 Corresponde	RESPONDENCE, PETITIONS & DELEGATIONS Correspondence - None				
0.1 CHIEF ADMI 10.1.1	Brush Pick Up Initiative Update Tender 05-158 Harbour East Artificial Turf Sports Field, East Region Tender 05-233, Paving Resurfacing and Water Main Renewal, Stephen Cross Drive - East Region Tender 05-240, Resurfacing Duke Street, West Region Tender 05-248, Proposed Paving and Watermain Renewal, Louisburg Lane (Civic #26 to Weyburn Rd)				
	PPROVAL OF MIN PPROVAL OF TH DDITIONS AND D USINESS ARISING OTIONS OF RECO OTIONS OF RESO ONSIDERATION OF UBLIC HEARINGS 1 Sale of 101 A Women and 2 Case 00749 Planning Strategy and St. Margaret ORRESPONDENC 1 Corresponde 2 Petitions EPORTS 0.1 CHIEF ADMIT 10.1.1 10.1.2 10.1.3 10.1.4	PPROVAL OF MINUTES PPROVAL OF THE ORDER OF BUSINESS AND APPROVAL OF DDITIONS AND DELETIONS USINESS ARISING OUT OF THE MINUTES OTIONS OF RECONSIDERATION - NONE ONSIDERATION OF DEFERRED BUSINESS - NONE UBLIC HEARINGS 1 Sale of 101 Albro Lake Road (Lot 3A) Dartmouth, to Adsum for Women and Children 2 Case 00749 - Amendment to the Pinecrest/Highfield Secondary Planning Strategy, Dartmouth 3 Case 00589 - Timberlea/Lakeside/Beechville Municipal Planning Strategy and Land Use By-Law Amendment for 2892/2894 St. Margaret's Bay Road, Timberlea ORRESPONDENCE, PETITIONS & DELEGATIONS 1 Correspondence - None 2 Petitions EPORTS 0.1 CHIEF ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICER 10.1.1 Brush Pick Up Initiative Update 10.1.2 Tender 05-158 Harbour East Artificial Turf Sports Field, East Region 10.1.3 Tender 05-233, Paving Resurfacing and Water Main Renewal, Stephen Cross Drive - East Region 10.1.4 Tender 05-240, Resurfacing Duke Street, West Region 10.1.5 Tender 05-248, Proposed Paving and Watermain Renewal, Louisburg Lane (Civic #26 to Weyburn Rd)			

		10.1.6	Tender 05-351, Ellenvale Sewershed Manhole	
		40.4.7	Rehabilitation Program - East Region	
		10.1.7	Aerotech/Airport Water System Transfer	11
		10.1.8	Capital Budget Increase World Trade and Convention	
			Centre (WTCC) Expansion and Metro Centre II	10
		10.1.9	Feasibility Study Permitting Process for Aliant Telecommunication	12
		10.1.9	Cabinets in HRM Right of Ways	12
		10.1.10	Revenue Strategy: Proposed Tax Reform Initiative	
		10.1.11	HRM Scorecard 2 nd Annual Report	
		10.1.12	Vacant and Boarded up Buildings	
		10.1.13	Case 00596 - Amendment to Halifax MPS - Water Lot	
			Infilling on Northwest Arm	12
		10.1.14	By-Law T-216, An Amendment to By-Law T-200,	
			Respecting Tax Exemption for Non-Profit Organizations:	
			2005-2006 New Applications	13
	10.2	HADROLID	EAST COMMUNITY COUNCIL	
	10.2	10.2.1	Case 00584: Mixed Residential Development -	
		10.2.1	Parcel's B&C Woodland Avenue and Block X, South	
			Ridge Circle, Dartmouth	13
			3	
	10.3	MEMBERS	OF COUNCIL	
		10.3.1	Councillor Uteck - Formation of Committee to Establish	
			A Formal Relationship with Canadian National Railway	14
	MOTI	0110		
11.	MOTI 11.1	MOTIONS 11.1 Councillor Younger - Amendment to By-Law P-500. Respecting		
	11.1		ters	14
	11.2		Iteck - Administrative Order #36, Respecting establishment	14
	11.2		xi Committee	14
		or on igio raz	A Committee of the contract of	• •
12.	ADDED ITEMS			
	12.1	12.1 Councillor Rankin - Information Item #6 - Case 00793 - Timberlea, Lakeside, Beechville Service Boundary		
	12.2	Energy Project		
	12.3			
	12.4		Snow - Staff Report re funding sources to assist Halifax	17
		international	I Air Show	1/
13.	NOTI	CES OF MOT	ION	17
	NOTICE OF MOTION			

14. ADJOURNMENT 17

1. INVOCATION

The meeting was called to order at 6:00 p.m. with the Invocation being led by Councillor Snow.

Council recognized MLA's Jerry Pye and Sandy Jollimore who were present.

- 2. APPROVAL OF MINUTES NONE
- 3. <u>APPROVAL OF THE ORDER OF BUSINESS AND APPROVAL OF ADDITIONS AND DELETIONS</u>

Additions

- 12.1 Councillor Rankin Request to move Information Item #6 "Case 00793 Timberlea, Lakeside and Beechville Service Boundary to Regional Council Agenda for discussion
- 12.2 Contractual Matter Halifax Regional Municipality Community Energy Project
- 12.3 2014 Commonwealth Games Bid
- 12.4 Councillor Snow Staff report re funding sources to assist Halifax International Air Show

Council agreed to defer items 10.1.10, Revenue Strategy: Proposed Tax Reform Strategy Initiative and 10.1.11, Halifax Regional Municipality Scorecard 2nd Annual Report, to September.

Council agreed to address item 8.2 prior to 8.1.

MOVED by Councillor Walker, seconded by Councillor Kent, that the Order of Business, as amended, be approved. MOTION PUT AND PASSED UNANIMOUSLY.

- 4. <u>BUSINESS ARISING OUT OF THE MINUTE NONE</u>
- 5. MOTIONS OF RECONSIDERATION NONE
- 6. <u>MOTIONS OF RESCISSION NONE</u>

7. <u>CONSIDERATION OF DEFERRED BUSINESS - NONE</u>

8. PUBLIC HEARINGS

8.2 <u>Case 00749 - Amendment to the Pinecrest/Highfield Secondary Planning Strategy, Dartmouth</u>

- An extract from the June 21, 2005 Regional Council minutes, on the above noted, was before Council.
- A report, dated June 15, 2005, on the above noted, was before Council.

Mr. Shayne Vipond, Planner, with the aid of overheads, presented the staff report, noting that if these amendments are approved the development agreement will be heard by Harbour East Community Council in September.

Mayor Kelly called for those wishing to speak either in favour of or in opposition to the proposed amendment.

Ms. Maureen Collins, Dartmouth, President, Board of Directors, Adsum, spoke in support of the proposed amendments advising that if they had the ability to expand they could provide full time services.

Ms. Angela Bishop, Executive Director, Dartmouth Family Centre, spoke in support of the proposed amendments advising this type of housing is needed in the community.

Ms. Donna Grant, Dartmouth, spoke in favour of the proposed amendments stating the proposal is a good one and there is a need for more affordable supportive housing.

Mr. Jerry Pye, MLA, expressed concern with the proposed amendments. There is concern with multi unit developments. He noted that 61% of the households in Dartmouth North are multi unit developments and the community needs assurances that there will be an examination of the number of multi unit developments in Dartmouth North. He noted Adsum Court will continue to provide needed services to the community.

Ms. Lynn Barrett, Executive Director, Bryony House, spoke in favour of the proposed amendments.

Ms. Patricia Richards, Dartmouth, representing Adsum, spoke in support of the amendments advising positive feedback was received in response to consultation within the community to explain the proposal. She noted surrounding properties are zoned R-3.

Ms. Rebecca Skeet, spoke in favour of the amendments indicating the facility is needed.

Mayor Kelly called three times for additional speakers. Hearing none, the following motion was placed.

MOVED by Deputy Mayor Goucher, seconded by Councillor Walker, that the public hearing close. MOTION PUT AND PASSED UNANIMOUSLY.

DECISION OF COUNCIL

MOVED by Councillor Smith, seconded by Councillor Younger, that Regional Council approve the amendments to the Dartmouth Municipal Planning Strategy and Land Use By-Law provided in Attachment "A" and "B" of the May 19, 2005 staff report. MOTION PUT AND PASSED UNANIMOUSLY.

8.1 <u>Sale of 101 Albro Lake Road (Lot 3A) Dartmouth, to Adsum for Women</u> and Children

- A supplementary report dated July 12, 2005, on the above noted, was before Council.
- Extract from February 1, 2005 Regional Council minutes, on the above noted, was before Council.
- A report from the Grants Committee, dated December 6, 2004, on the above noted, was before Council.
- P. J. Temple, Coordinator, Grants Program, presented the staff report.

Mayor Kelly called for those wishing to speak either in favour of or in opposition to the proposed sale.

Ms. Sheri Acker, spoke in favour requesting the final condition, the buy back condition, be struck from the agreement.

Mayor Kelly called for any additional speakers. Hearing none, the following motion was placed.

MOVED by Councillor Sloane, seconded by Councillor Karsten, that the public hearing close. MOTION PUT AND PASSED UNANIMOUSLY.

DECISION OF COUNCIL

MOVED by Councillor Smith, seconded by Councillor Karsten, that Regional Council

authorize the Mayor and Municipal Clerk to enter into an Agreement of Purchase and Sale whereby the property located at 101 Albro Lake Road (Lot 3A) be conveyed to Adsum for Women & Children for the sum of \$1, subject to site survey and legal description, and the terms and conditions set out in the Discussion section of the July 12, 2005 supplementary report with the exception that there would be no buy back agreement. MOTION PUT AND PASSED UNANIMOUSLY.

- 8.3 <u>Case 00589 Timberlea/Lakeside/Beechville Municipal Planning</u>
 Strategy and Land Use By-Law Amendment for 2892/2894 St. Margaret's
 Bay Road, Timberlea
- An extract from the July 5, 2005 Regional Council minutes, on the above noted, was before Council.
- A report from the Western Region Community Council, dated June 28, 2005, on the above noted, was before Council.

Ms. Rhanda Wheaton, Planner, with the aid of overheads, presented the staff report.

Mayor Kelly called for those wishing to speak either in favour of or opposition to the proposed amendments. Hearing none, the following motion was placed.

MOVED by Councillor Sloane, seconded by Councillor Karsten, that the public hearing close. MOTION PUT AND PASSED UNANIMOUSLY.

DECISION OF COUNCIL

MOVED by Councillor Rankin, seconded by Councillor Walker, that Regional Council approve the amendments to the Timberlea/Lakeside/Beechville Municipal Planning Strategy (MPS) and Land Use By-Law (LUB) as contained in Appendix A of the staff report dated June 10, 2005. MOTION PUT AND PASSED UNANIMOUSLY.

- 9. CORRESPONDENCE, PETITIONS AND DELEGATIONS
- 9.1 Correspondence None
- 9.2 Petitions
- 9.2.1 <u>Councillor Harvey</u>

Councillor Harvey served a petition on behalf of the residents of Summerville Drive, Sackville,

requesting repaving of the street.

- 10. <u>REPORTS</u>
- 10.1 <u>CHIEF ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICER</u>

10.1.1 Brush Pick Up Initiative Update

Mr. Peter Bigelow, with the aid of a Powerpoint presentation, outlined the proposal noting:

- it will help residents to clean up their own areas,
- residents should clean up 100 ft. around their buildings,
- debris can be piled at edge of properties and HRM will pick up and process the materials.
- it is a one time program only,
- it is a protection program,
- it is not a general clean up,
- HRM is not cleaning up the properties, the residents are,
- it is not part of regular refuse clean up,
- HRM is asking residents to pile materials near property line but not under power lines,
 do no pile in ditches nor in travel ways nor watercourses,
- it is a four week program.

Following the presentation, Mr. Bigelow answered questions providing clarification on varying aspects of the proposed clean up program.

Councillor Streatch requested staff examine the possibility of expanding the service into the communities of Musquodoboit Harbour and the East/West Petpeswick Road area.

In response to Councillor Karsten as to the budget implications of this program, Mr. Bigelow advised the Municipality executes the program and expends the funds and then makes application to the Provincial DFA program for reimbursement.

Councillor Rankin requested staff examine the Prospect Road.

Councillor Meade requested the areas of Glen Arbour, Kingswood, Highland Park and Haliburton Hills be examined.

Mr. Bigelow cautioned Council that the beetle zone is the defining reason for this program and it may not be possible to expand outside that designation.

Mayor Kelly thanked Mr. Bigelow for the presentation.

10.1.2 <u>Tender 05-158 Harbour East Artificial Turf Sports Field, East Region</u>

A report dated July 27, 2005, on the above noted, was before Council.

CONFLICT OF INTEREST

Councillor Streatch declared a Conflict of Interest and removed himself from discussion on this issue.

MOVED by Councillor Smith, seconded by Councillor Karsten,, that Council:

- 1. Award Tender No. 05-158, Harbour East Artificial Turf Sports Fields to Dexter Construction Company Limited for the earthworks portion of the construction of two artificial turf sports fields in the Spectacle Lake area of the Burnside Industrial Park at the lump sum quoted tender price total \$2,893,450 including fully recoverable HST from Capital Account CPG00581 Dartmouth Artificial Sportsfield, as per the Budget Implications section of the July 27, 2005 report.
- 2. Approve the appointment of Jacques Whitford Limited for construction inspection and lot certification for an estimated fee of \$30,000 including fully recoverable HST from Capital Account No. CPG00581 Dartmouth Artificial Sportsfield, as per the Budget Implications section of the July 27, 2005 report.

MOTION PUT AND PASSED UNANIMOUSLY.

- 10.1.3 <u>Tender 05-233, Paving Resurfacing and Water Main Renewal, Stephen</u> Cross Drive - East Region
- A report dated July 29, 2005, on the above noted, was before Council.

MOVED by Councillor Younger, seconded by Councillor Smith, that Halifax Regional Council:

- 1. Approve an increase in the Gross Budget for Capital Account No. CZU00717, Resurfacing, by \$139,094, to reflect cost sharing of the cost of the water main renewal on Stephen Cross Drive from HRWC with no change in the Net Budget.
- 2. Award Tender No. 05-233, Paving Resurfacing and Water Main Renewal, Stephen Cross Drive East Region, to Amber Contracting Limited for materials and services listed at the unit prices quoted for a Tender Price of \$468,725 including net HST from Capital Account No. CZU00717, Resurfacing and Capital Account No. CGU00461 Sewer Lateral Replacements, with funding authorized as per the Budget Implications section of the July 29, 2005 report.

MOTION PUT AND PASSED UNANIMOUSLY.

10.1.4 <u>Tender 05-240, Resurfacing Duke Street, West Region</u>

A report dated July 29, 2005, on the above noted, was before Council.

MOVED by Deputy Mayor Goucher, seconded by Councillor Sloane, that Council:

- 1. Approve an increase in the Gross Budget for Capital Account No. CZU00717, Resurfacing, by \$13,911, to reflect cost sharing on the water reinstatement on Duke Street from HRWC with no change in the Net Budget.
- 2. Award Tender No. 05-240, Resurfacing, Duke Street West Region to Dexter Construction Company Limited for materials and services listed at the unit prices quoted for a Tender Price of \$220,904 including net HST from Capital Account No. CZU00717, Resurfacing and Capital Account No. CDG00490, Capital District Urban Design Study as per the Budget Implications section of the July 29, 2005 report.

MOTION PUT AND PASSED UNANIMOUSLY.

10.1.5 <u>Tender 05-248, Proposed Paving and Watermain Renewal, Louisburg</u> Lane (Civic #26 to Weyburn Road) - East Region

A report dated July 29, 2005, on the above noted, was before Council.

MOVED by Councillor Younger, seconded by Councillor Johns, that Halifax Regional Council:

- 1. Approve an increase in the Gross Budget for Capital Account No. CYU00716, Paving Renewal Program, by \$170,595, to reflect cost sharing of the cost of the watermain renewal on Louisburg Lane with no change in the Net Budget.
- 2. Award Tender No. 05-248, Proposed Paving and Water Main Renewal, Louisburg Lane - East Region, to Dexter Construction Company Limited for materials and services listed at the unit prices quoted for a Tender Price of \$365,435 including net HST from Capital Account No. CYU00716 Paving Renewal Program and Capital Account No. CGU00461 Sewer Lateral Replacements, with funding authorized as per the Budget Implications section

of the July 29, 2005 report.

MOTION PUT AND PASSED UNANIMOUSLY.

10.1.6 <u>Tender 05-351, Ellenvale Sewershed Manhole Rehabilitation Program -</u> East Region

A report dated July 27, 2005, on the above noted, was before Council.

MOVED by Councillor Younger, seconded by Councillor Snow, that Council:

- 1. Approve an increase to the Gross Budget for Capital Account No. CSR00503, Infiltration/Inflow Reduction, in the amount of \$772,511 with no change to the net budget, to reflect the incremental funding from the Canada Strategic Infrastructure Fund (CSIF).
- 2. Award Tender No. 05-351, Ellenvale Sewershed Manhole Rehabilitation Program East Region to Amber Contracting Limited for materials and services listed at the unit prices quoted for a Tender Price of \$702,283 including net HST from Capital Account No. CSR00503, Infiltration/Inflow Reduction, with funding authorized as per the Budget Implications section of the July 27, 2005 report.
- 3. Approve the amount of \$70,228 including net HST for testing of materials and unforseen works from Capital Account No. CSR00503, Infiltration/Inflow Reduction, as per the Budget Implications section of the July 27, 2005 report.

MOTION PUT AND PASSED UNANIMOUSLY.

10.1.7 Aerotech/Airport Water System Transfer

A report dated July 28, 2005, on the above noted, was before Council.

MOVED by Councillor Snow, seconded by Councillor Younger, that Council:

- 1. Request the Halifax Regional Water Commission Board to accept the transfer of ownership of the Aerotech Park water treatment and distribution infrastructure from Halifax Regional Municipality (HRM) to Halifax Regional Water Commission (HRWC) effective April 1, 2006.
- 2. Request the Halifax Regional Water Commission Board to accept the transfer of operations and maintenance responsibilities and contractual obligations of the Aerotech Park and the Halifax International Airport Authority (HIAA) water systems from Halifax Regional Municipality (HRM) to the Halifax Regional

Water Commission (HRWC) effective April 1, 2006.

MOTION PUT AND PASSED UNANIMOUSLY.

10.1.8 <u>Capital Budget Increase World Trade and Convention Centre (WTCC)</u> <u>Expansion and Metro Centre II Feasibility Study</u>

A report dated July 27, 2005, on the above noted, was before Council.

MOVED by Councillor Walker, seconded by Deputy Mayor Goucher, that Regional Council approve an increase in the 2005/06 Gross Capital Budget, and creation of a Capital Account, World Trade and Convention Centre Expansion and Metro Centre II Feasibility Study in the amount of \$255,000 with funding from HRM of \$85,000 and \$170,000 to reflect cost sharing from ACOA and the Province of Nova Scotia, as per the Budget Implications section of the July 27, 2005 report. MOTION PUT AND PASSED UNANIMOUSLY.

10.1.9 <u>Permitting Process for Aliant Telecommunications Cabinets in HRM</u> Right of Ways

A report dated July 29, 2005, on the above noted, was before Council.

MOVED by Councillor Hum, seconded by Councillor Walker, that HRM Council approve the permitting process for the placement of Aliant telecommunications cabinets in HRM right of ways as described in Attachment A of the July 29, 2005 staff report.

Councillor Snow noted that on June 14th when this process was started concerns were expressed with regards to garbage making Canada Post sites unsightly. In response, Council was advised that Canada Post is under a different regulation and this procedure is not for anything other than the Aliant Telecommunication Cabinets.

MOTION PUT AND PASSED UNANIMOUSLY.

10.1.10 Revenue Strategy: Proposed Tax Reform Initiative

Deferred to September under the approval of the Order of Business.

10.1.11 <u>Halifax Regional Municipality Scorecard 2nd Annual Report</u>

Deferred to September under the approval of the Order of Business.

10.1.12 <u>Vacant and Boarded up Buildings</u>

A report dated July 26, 2005, on the above noted, was before Council.

MOVED by Councillor Smith, seconded by Councillor Sloane, that Halifax Regional Council request that the Province adopt legislative amendments granting the Halifax Regional Municipality the power to expropriate properties which are deemed to be in a vacant and boarded up condition and to sell these properties at below market value. MOTION PUT AND PASSED UNANIMOUSLY.

10.1.13 <u>Case 00596 - Amendment to Halifax Municipal Planning Strategy - Water</u> <u>Lot Infilling on Northwest Arm</u>

A report dated July 28, 2005, on the above noted, was before Council.

MOVED by Councillor Mosher, seconded by Councillor Uteck, that Regional Council:

- 1. Authorize staff to initiate the process to amend the Halifax Municipal Planning Strategy (MPS) and Halifax Mainland and Peninsula Land Use By-Laws (LUB's), in order to establish policies and regulations aimed at controlling development and subdivision on water lots infilled along either side of the Northwest Arm.
- 2. Instruct that the MPS amendment process include a public participation program in accordance with the Public Participation Resolution adopted by Regional Council on February 25, 1997.

Councillor Mosher stated there is a need for controls to deter the infilling and protect view plains and historical access.

In response to Councillor Uteck, Mr. Luc Oulette, Planner, advised this is for the Arm only and not for lots that have been filled in but those that have the potential for future infilling.

MOTION PUT AND PASSED UNANIMOUSLY.

10.1.14 <u>By-Law T-216, An Amendment to By-Law T-200, Respecting Tax Exemption for Non-Profit Organizations: 2005-2006: New Applications</u>

 A report from the Grants Committee, dated June 7, 2005, on the above noted, was before Council.

MOVED by Councillor Walker, seconded by Councillor Johns, that Regional Council give First Reading to By-Law T-216, An Amendment to By-Law T-200, Respecting Tax Exemption for Non-Profit Organizations 2005-2006: New Applications and schedule a public hearing for September 13, 2005. MOTION PUT AND PASSED UNANIMOUSLY.

- 10.2 HARBOUR EAST COMMUNITY COUNCIL
- 10.2.1 Case 00584: Mixed Residential Development Parcels B&C Woodland Avenue and Block X, South Ridge Circle, Dartmouth
- A report dated August 5, 2005, from the Harbour East Community Council, on the above noted, was before Council.

MOVED by Councillor Smith, seconded by Councillor Karsten, that Regional Council give First Reading to the proposed amendments to the Dartmouth MPS and LUB provided in Attachment A of the June 15, 2005 staff report and schedule a joint public hearing with Harbour East Community Council. MOTION PUT AND PASSED UNANIMOUSLY.

- 10.3 MEMBERS OF COUNCIL
- 10.3.1 Councillor Uteck Formation of Committee to Establish a Formal Relationship with Canadian National Railway (CNR)

MOVED by Councillor Uteck, seconded by Deputy Mayor Goucher, that HRM strike a committee with respect to having a more formal relationship with CNR. Stakeholders should come from all departments, including Real Property and Asset Management, Recreation, Planning, Traffic and Transportation, Technical and Underground Services, Harbour Solutions and external stakeholders such as Waterfront Development and Halifax Port Authority. Further, the committee will have one port of entry with CN and discuss the various issues that relate to HRM such as grass cutting, bridge repair, future trails, easements, etc. MOTION PUT AND PASSED UNANIMOUSLY.

- 11. MOTIONS
- 11.1 <u>Councillor Younger Amendment to By-Law P-500 Respecting Parking</u>

Meters

MOVED by Councillor Younger, seconded by Councillor Hum, that Regional Council give First Reading of an amendment to By-Law P-500 respecting Parking Meters and the provision of free parking at municipal parking meters for vehicles with a provincially issued Veteran's license plate for the remainder of 2005, the Year of the Veteran. MOTION PUT AND PASSED.

11.2 <u>Councillor Uteck - Administrative Order #38</u>

MOVED by Councillor Uteck, seconded by Deputy Mayor Goucher. that Council adopt Administrative Order #38 respecting the formation of a single taxi committee.

In response to Councillor Streatch, Mr. Anstey, Municipal Solicitor, advised the appropriate provision in the Municipal Government Act provides that Council, by policy, may establish citizen advisory committees, nothing this is what this committee would be. He further noted that if Council wished to amend the administrative order at a future date, Council would give Notice of Motion and at the following meeting approve the amendment.

Councillor Streatch stated he would prefer that the term Taxi Committee not be used in reference to the new Committee and placed the following motion.

MOVED by Councillor Streatch, seconded by Councillor Sloane that the Administrative Order be deferred to September 6, 2005.

MOTION TO DEFER DEFEATED

MAIN MOTION PUT AND PASSED (13 in favour, 5 against)

Those voting **in favour** were Mayor Kelly, Deputy Mayor Goucher and Councillors Streatch, Hendsbee, Smith, Murphy, Uteck, Walker, Hum, Mosher, Johns, Rankin and Meade.

Those voting **against** were Councillors Snow, Younger, Karsten, Sloane and Harvey.

Councillors McInroy, McCluskey, Kent, Wile, Fougere and Adams were absent for the vote.

12. ADDED ITEMS

12.1 <u>Councillor Rankin - Information Item #6 - Case 00793 - Timberlea, Lakeside, Beechville Service Boundary</u>

Councillor Rankin addressed the matter stating that the information report suggests the reason for the deferral of the report prepared for the July 5th meeting was a result of a number of concerns such as:

- the legal situation.
- honouring obligations under the Development Agreement as well as the impact on the community,
- that all affected landowners be treated fairly,

- it should be made clear what the two development/servicing scenarios referenced in the report are,
- direction given as to the principles that should be applied in priorizing allocation of capacity.

Councillor Ranking requested the information be provided to staff and made the following motion.

MOVED by Councillor Rankin, seconded by Councillor Streatch, that staff provide a supplementary report for the September 6, 2005 Council session clarifying the issues outlined in his submission. MOTION PUT AND PASSED UNANIMOUSLY.

12.2 <u>Contractual Matter - Halifax Regional Municipality Community Energy</u> <u>Project</u>

 This item was discussed at an In Camera session held earlier in the day and was now before Council for ratification.

MOVED by Councillor Uteck, seconded by Councillor Sloane, that Halifax Regional Council:

- 1. Authorize the Municipality to enter into a Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) substantially in the form of a draft MOU attached to the August 9, 2005 Private and Confidential staff report with Dalhousie University, Saint Mary's University, the Capital District Health Authority, and NS Energy to establish the parameters of a relationship to move forward with Business Development, Stage One for the first node of the HRM Community Project.
- 2. Authorize the sole-source award of Business Development, Stage One to FVB Energy Services, for a total of \$77,572 including net HST from Capital Account No. CBI00697, District Energy Concept, subject to the signing of the MOU and receipt of funding as described in the Budget Implications section of the August 9, 2005 Private and Confidential staff report.
- 3. Not release the August 9, 2005 Private and Confidential staff report until the Memorandum of Understanding is signed.

MOTION PUT AND PASSED UNANIMOUSLY.

12.3 2014 Commonwealth Games Bid

• This item was discussed at a Committee of the Whole held earlier in the day and was now before Council for ratification.

MOVED by Councillor Karsten, seconded by Councillor Walker, that Regional Council:

- 1. Approve the Bid Executive Committee Structure outlined in the report dated August 4, 2005 and endorse HRM's bid to host the 2014 Commonwealth Games.
- 2. Approve a withdrawal from the Major Events Facility Reserve, Q319 not to exceed \$375,000 to fund 50% of the Halifax Domestic Bid for the 2014 Commonwealth Games.

MOTION PUT AND PASSED UNANIMOUSLY.

12.4 <u>Councillor Snow - Staff report re funding sources to assist Halifax International</u>
Air Show

MOVED by Councillor Snow, seconded by Councillor Hendsbee, that staff provide a report for September 6, 2005 identifying a funding source for \$30,000 to assist the Halifax International Air Show with reducing previous years debt. MOTION PUT AND PASSED UNANIMOUSLY.

- 13. NOTICES OF MOTION NONE
- 14. ADJOURNMENT

The meeting was adjourned at 9:20 p.m.

Jan Gibson Municipal Clerk

The following information items were circulated to Council:

- 1. Proclamation Taoist Tai Chi Awareness Day September 3, 2005
- 2. Proclamation National Ovarian Cancer Month September 2005
- 3. Memorandum from Environment Management Services dated July 29, 2005 re: Failure of Non Corrode Sewer Pipe
- 4. Memorandum from Director, Environment Management Services dated August 3, 2005 re: Litter Prevention
- 5. Memorandum from Planning and Development dated July 10, 2005 re: Wind Turbine Proposal Lake Major Watershed
- 6. Memorandum from Planning and Development dated July 27, 2005 re: Case 00793 Timberlea, Lakeside and Beechville Service Boundary
- 7. Memorandum from Acting Director, Real Property and Asset Management dated August 1, 2005 re: Dartmouth Pedestrian Bridge
- 8. Memorandum from the Municipal Clerk, dated August 5, 2005 re: Requests for Presentations to Council None.